136 North Monroe Street
Waterloo, WI 53594
Phone: (920) 478-3025
Fax: (920) 478-2021
www.waterloowi.us

PUBLIC NOTICE OF A COMMITTEE MEETING
OF THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WATERLOO
Updated 11/3/2025

Pursuant to Section 19.84 Wisconsin Statutes, notice is hereby given to the public & news media, that the following
meeting will be held:

COMMITTEE: PUBLIC SAFETY AND HEALTH COMMITTEE

DATE: November 6, 2025

TIME: 6:00 p.m.

LOCATION: Municipal Building Police Training Room, 136 N. Monroe Street

1) CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL
2) APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES: October 2, 2025
3) PUBLIC COMMENT
4) UNFINISHED BUSINESS
a) Massage Parlor — Update from Attorney
5) NEW BUSINESS
a) 2025-2026 Snowmobile Trail Map
b) 2025 Holiday Parade

6) BLIGHT REPORT

7) FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS, COMMUNICATIONS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS

8) ADJOURNMENT
Committee Members: Thomas, Cummings, Griffin posted, e-mailed & distributed: 10/31/2025

PLEASE NOTE: IT IS POSSIBLE THAT MEMBERS OF AND POSSIBLY A QUORUM OF MEMBERS OF OTHER GOVERNMENTAL BODIES OF THE MUNICIPALITY MAY BE IN
ATTENDANCE AT THE ABOVE MEETING(S) TO GATHER INFORMATION. NO ACTION WILL BE TAKEN BY ANY GOVERNMENTAL BODY OTHER THAN THAT
SPECIFICALLY NOTICED. ALSO, UPON REASONABLE NOTICE, EFFORTS WILL BE MADE TO ACCOMMODATE THE NEEDS OF DISABLED INDIVIDUALS THROUGH
APPROPRIATE AIDS AND SERVICES. FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION OR TO REQUEST SUCH SERVICES PLEASE CONTACT THE CLERK'S OFFICE AT THE ABOVE
LOCATION.



http://www.waterloowi.us/

PUBLIC SAFETY AND HEALTH COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES
Oct 2, 2025
Call to Order:
The Public Safety Committee meeting was called to order by Alderperson Cummings at
6:00PM

Roll Call:
Committee members present — Alderperson Thomas, Griffin, Cammings, Chief
Sorenson. Lt. Warner, Citizen Ashley Boyer

Approval of Public Safety Committee Minutes of September 4, 2025. Motion by
Alderperson Thomas to approve Prior minutes, second by Cummings, motion
carried.

New Business: None

Public Comment: None

Unfinished Business: a) Massage Parlor Ordinance 2025-11. Motion to approve to council
by Thomas, massage parlor ordinance with noted changes, 1) Grandfather existing massage
parlor businesses that were state licensed before October 1, 2025. 2) Effective date to be
determined based upon required time of posting. 3) Application fee yet to be set by City Hall
for Application Fee amount. Second by Griffin, motion carried.

b) Recreational vehicle ordinance 261-6. Thomas motioned to leave existing ordinance
as is, Griffin second, voice vote, Griffin yes, Thomas yes, Cummings no, motion carried.

Blight Report: Chief Sorenson gave the new update of the blight list from 10-2-2025

Future Agenda Items, Communications and announcements: None

Adjourn: Motion to Adjourn by Alderperson Griffin, second by Thomas, motion
carried.



Jeanne Ritter

From: William S. Cole <wcole@axley.com>
Sent: Friday, October 31, 2025 12:45 PM
To: Jeanne Ritter; Sandi L. Holcomb

Cc: Denis Sorenson

Subject: RE: Massage Parlor Ordinance
HiJeanne,

Itis permissible to do this. Effectively, the amendment would grandfather existing residential massage
parlors from the prohibition of having living accommodations, beds, etc. This occurs all the time as a matter of law
when zoning codes are changed. Since this is a public health and welfare ordinance the law does not require
grandfathering, but it is legal for the council to do so if it finds such grandfathering to be in the public interest.

Effectively, it boils down to balancing the need for the prohibition to assist in enforcement of the purpose
of the ordinance to prevent sexual activity and human trafficking against the impact it would have on residential
massage parlors that lawfully existed prior to enactment of this ordinance. That is a policy call for the council to
decide. Legally, they can go either way.

If they decide to allow the grandfathering, | would suggest more than simply outright exempting an
establishment prior to 10/1/25. | would suggest language such as the following:

(f) No person shallreside, sleep overnight, or maintain living accommodations at the massage establishment,
including but not limited to the use of beds, cots, mattresses, or sleeping bags. Lawfully operating residential
massage parlors existing at their current location prior to October 1, 2025, shall be exempt from the requirements
of this subsection (f) unless and until any of the following occurs:

1. The massage establishment closes for business for more than 30 consecutive days;

2. There is any change in ownership of the massage establishment business;

3. The massage establishment moves to a different location than it operated at on September 30, 2025;

4. The building in which the massage establishment operated at on September 30, 2025, is subsequently
destroyed, or substantially damaged or renovated such that the cost of repair or renovation exceeds $50,000;

5. The massage establishment, any owner, employee, or agent thereof, or any massage therapist
operating at the location of the establishment is found guilty of any violation of this Chapter 175 of this Code or
Ordinances or any criminal violation of the Wisconsin Statutes.

William Cole
Attorney

AXLEY LLP

2 E. Mifflin St. Ste 200 | Madison, WI 53703
P.O. Box 1767 | Madison, WI 53701-1767
Phone: 608.283.6766 | Fax: 608.257.5444
Email: WCole@axley.com | bio | axley.com

Legal Assistant: Sandi Holcomb
Phone: 608.283.6732 | Email: SHolcomb@axley.com

From: Jeanne Ritter <jritter@waterloowi.us>

Sent: Friday, October 31, 2025 10:05 AM

To: William S. Cole <wcole@axley.com>; Sandi L. Holcomb <SHolcomb@axley.com>
Cc: Denis Sorenson <dpsorenson@waterloowi.us>

Subject: RE: Massage Parlor Ordinance



136 North Monroe Street
Waterloo, WI 53594
Phone: (920) 478-3025
Fax: (920) 478-2021
www.waterloowi.us

ORDINANCE #2025-11

An Ordinance Creating Chapter 175 Regulating Massage Parlors
WHEREAS, the Common Council finds it to be in the public interest to regulate massage parlors in the City.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Common Council of the City of Waterloo, Jefferson County, Wisconsin, do ordain as follows:

SECTION 1. Chapter 175 of the Code of Ordinances is hereby created as set forth in Exhibit A.
SECTION 2. All other provisions of the Code of Ordinances not specifically amended herein shall remain
unmodified and in full force and effect.
SECTION 3. This ordinance shall take effect upon passage and publication as provided by law.
Acted on and adopted at a result meeting of the Common Council on , 2025.
CITY OF WATERLOO

Jenifer Quimby, Mayor

Attest:

Jeanne Ritter, City Clerk

Date Adopted _Date Published



http://www.waterloowi.us/

MASSAGE PARLORS

§ 175-1. Purpose and Intent

The City of Waterloo enacts this ordinance to protect public health, safety, and welfare by
ensuring that businesses offering massage services operate in a professional and legitimate
manner, preventing illegal activities such as prostitution and human trafficking.

§ 175-2. Definitions
For the purposes of this ordinance:

“Massage”: Any method of treating external parts of the human body for remedial,
relaxation, or therapeutic purposes by rubbing, stroking, kneading, tapping,
pounding, vibrating, or other similar methods.

“Massage Parlor/Establishment”: Any business that advertises or offers massages
for compensation, excluding licensed medical offices and physical therapy practices.

“Massage Establishment License” means a license issued by the City under the
authority of this ordinance, permitting the operation of a business where massage
therapy services are offered or provided for compensation.

“Massage Therapist”: An individual licensed by the State of Wisconsin under Wis.
Stat. § 460.04 to engage in the practice of massage therapy or bodywork therapy.

“Massage Therapist License” means a valid and active credential issued by the
Wisconsin Department of Safety and Professional Services (DSPS) pursuant to Wis.
Stat. § 460.04, authorizing an individual to practice massage therapy or bodywork
therapy in the State of Wisconsin.

“Owner” means any person or entity holding a legal or equitable interest in the
massage establishment, including, but not limited to, any sole proprietor, partner,
corporate officer, or limited liability company member.

“Table shower” means a procedure in which a client lies on a table or platform
while being sprayed or washed by a massage therapist or employee, often
associated with spa-type water massages.

“Vichy shower” means a system that sprays water over a client while they are lying
down and may involve physical contact.

“Sexually Explicit Advertising” means any written, visual, or oral communication
that: Depicts or describes sexual conduct or nudity; Suggests, implies, or offers
sexual activity, erotic services, or other acts not permitted by Wisconsin law;
Includes terminology commonly associated with prostitution or escort services,



» « » o« » « » «

such as “happy ending,” “sensual massage,” “erotic rub,” “sexy staff,

services,” or similar terms.

special

“Refusal to Allow Inspection” means a licensee’s or employee’s denial, delay,
obstruction, or limitation of lawful entry by authorized city officials during posted
or known business hours for purposes of conducting inspections as required by this
ordinance.

“Business Hours” means the posted hours during which the massage establishment
is open to the public for the provision of massage services, but in no event earlier
than 8:00 AM or later than 8:00 PM, unless a variance is granted by the City.

“Locked During Business Hours” means any action by which the establishment’s
main entrance door is physically secured against entry by customers or public safety
officers during posted business hours, except during an emergency lockdown
situation necessary for the immediate safety of those present.

“Premises” means the physical location occupied by the massage establishment,
including all rooms, hallways, restrooms, and storage areas used in the operation of
the business.

“Prostitution” means intentionally engaging in, offering to engage in, or requesting
another to engage in sexual intercourse, sexual contact, or any lewd or lascivious act
for anything of value, including money, goods, services, or other benefits.

“Solicitation of Prostitution” means knowingly requesting, encouraging, inducing,
or attempting to cause another person to engage in an act of prostitution, regardless
of whether money or anything of value is exchanged, and regardless of whether the
act actually occurs. Includes verbal or written offers, gestures, coded language, or
online communication made for the purpose of arranging sexual activity in
exchange for value. Applies to clients (“johns”), facilitators, or anyone attempting to
procure sexual services.

“Law Enforcement Officer” means any person employed by a city, county, or the
State of Wisconsin who is vested by law with the duty to maintain public order or to
make arrests for crimes, including but not limited to police officers, sheriff’s
deputies, state patrol officers, and investigators from the Wisconsin Department of
Justice.

“Authorized Inspector” means any city, county or state official, employee, or agent
who is designated by law to conduct inspections of massage establishments for
compliance with this ordinance and state law, including but not limited to building



inspectors, fire inspectors, zoning officials, public health officials, and business
licensing personnel.

§ 175-3. License Required

(a) No person shall operate a massage parlor within the City of Waterloo without first
obtaining a Massage Establishment License from the City Clerk.

(b) All persons providing massages must possess a valid Wisconsin Massage Therapist or
Bodywork Therapist license.

§ 175-4. Application for Massage Establishment License
Applicants must submit to the City Clerk:

1. Completed application form with:
o Legal name and any aliases.
o Proof of ownership or leasehold interest in the business premises.
o List of all owners, partners, members, or corporate officers.
2. Copy of a valid State of Wisconsin Massage Establishment license, if applicable.
3. Background check authorization for each owner/operator.
4. Nonrefundable application fee of $50.00 set by the Common Council.
5. Floor plan of the premises showing all rooms and uses.

§ 175-5. Conditions of Operation
Massage establishments must:

(a) Operate only between the hours of 8:00 AM and 8:00 PM, unless an extended-hours
permit is issued.

(b) Keep the premises clean, sanitary, and well-lit at all times.

(c) Maintain a log of all massage services provided, including client names (or initials) and
times, for a period of one year, available for inspection by law enforcement upon lawful
request.

(d) Ensure that massage therapists are properly clothed in professional attire and that no
nudity or sexually explicit conduct occurs on premises.

(e) Display each massage therapist’s state license prominently.

(f) No person shall reside, sleep overnight, or maintain living accommodations at the
massage establishment, including but not limited to the use of beds, cots, mattresses, or
sleeping bags. Except for existing residential massage parlors prior to October 1, 2025.
(g) All external doors to the massage establishment accessible to the public shall remain
unlocked during regular business hours when services are being provided, unless the
business is closed to the public.

(h) Nothing in this subsection shall prevent the locking of doors during an emergency



lockdown situation when necessary for safety.

(i) No advertising, display, or promotion of sexually explicit conduct, acts, or services shall
be permitted at the establishment or online.

(j) The use of table showers, Vichy showers, or similar equipment that involves bathing or
washing of clients by employees is strictly prohibited within the massage establishment.

§ 175-6. Prohibited Acts
No massage establishment or therapist shall:

(a) Allow, offer, or engage in sexual activity or conduct of a sexual nature on the premises.
(b) Employ anyone as a massage therapist who does not possess a valid state license.
(c) Operate as a front for prostitution, human trafficking, or other illegal activities.

§ 175-7. Duty to Report Solicitation of Prostitution

(a) Mandatory Reporting Requirement

Any massage therapist, employee, or license holder of a massage establishment who is
directly solicited for prostitution by a client or other individual on the premises shall
immediately report the incident to the Waterloo Police Department or other law
enforcement agency.

(b) Method of Reporting
Reports may be made verbally or in writing and must include, to the extent known:

1. The date and time of the incident;
2. A description of the individual making the solicitation;

3. Any identifying information (e.g.,, name, phone number, license plate, appointment
record); and

4. A description of the conduct that constituted the solicitation.

(c) Employer Notification Not Required
Nothing in this section shall require a massage therapist or employee to notify an employer
or supervisor before making the report. Reports may be made confidentially.

(d) Retaliation Prohibited
No owner, manager, or supervisor of a massage establishment shall discharge, discipline, or

otherwise retaliate against any person for reporting a solicitation of prostitution in good
faith.

(e) Failure to Report
Failure by a licensed massage therapist or employee to report a known act of solicitation
may result in penalties under sections 8 and 9.

175- 7. Inspections
Any law enforcement officer, health department inspectors, and/or duly authorized
officials may conduct reasonable inspections of licensed massage establishments during



operating hours to ensure compliance with this ordinance.

It is unlawful for any licensee, employee, or agent to refuse, hinder, or interfere with any
lawful inspection authorized by this section.

§ 175-8. Penalties
Violation of this ordinance shall subject the offender to:

e A municipal forfeiture not less than $250 and not more than $2,500 per violation.

o Refusal to permit a lawful inspection shall constitute a separate violation, subject to
an additional forfeiture of not less than $500 and not more than $2,500.

o Possible suspension or revocation of the massage establishment license after notice
and hearing.

o Violation of Section 5(f) (prohibition on living accommodations) shall be subject to
an immediate fine of $500 per violation and may result in emergency suspension of
the massage establishment license.

§ 175-9. Reporting of Violations to State Authorities

(a) Mandatory Reporting:
The City Clerk or designee shall report any of the following to the Wisconsin Department of
Safety and Professional Services (DSPS):

1. Any violation by a licensed massage therapist involving illegal sexual activity,
controlled substances, fraud, or violations of professional licensing standards;

2. Any conviction of a massage therapist for a felony or misdemeanor related to their
practice;

3. Any finding that a therapist has engaged in unlicensed practice of massage therapy
or bodywork therapy.

(b) Notification Contents:
Reports to DSPS shall include:

« Name of the individual;

e Wisconsin license number (if applicable);
e Description of the violation or incident;

e Disciplinary actions taken by the City; and

e Any supporting documentation from investigations or hearings.



(c) Timing:
Reports shall be made within ten (10) business days after the City determines that a
reportable violation has occurred.

§ 175-10. License Suspension and Revocation

(a) Grounds:

The City may suspend or revoke any Massage Establishment License for any of the
following:

1. Violation of any provision of this ordinance or state law regulating massage
establishments.

2. Conviction of any owner, manager, or employee for a crime involving prostitution,
human trafficking, sexual misconduct, or controlled substances.

3. Refusal to allow a lawful inspection under Section 7.
4. Three or more ordinance violations occurring within a twelve (12) month period.

(b) Procedure:
Before suspension or revocation, the licensee shall be entitled to a hearing before the
Common Council or its designated hearing officer.

e Written notice stating the grounds for suspension or revocation and the time and
place of the hearing shall be served at least ten (10) days prior to the hearing.

e The licensee may appear at the hearing with or without legal counsel, present
evidence, and cross-examine witnesses.

e The Common Council may suspend the license for a period not to exceed ninety (90)
days or revoke the license entirely.

(c) Emergency Suspension:

If the City determines that the continued operation of a massage establishment presents an
immediate threat to public health, safety, or welfare, the Chief of Police or City Clerk may
issue a temporary suspension order pending a hearing, effective immediately.

§ 175-11. License Renewal

(a) Term and Expiration:

All Massage Establishment Licenses issued under this ordinance shall expire on December
31 of each year, regardless of the date of issuance.

(b) Renewal Application:
Licensees seeking renewal must submit a renewal application to the City Clerk no later
than November 30 of each year, which shall include:

1. Updated ownership and operator information.



2. Proof of continued compliance with applicable state licensing requirements.

3. Certification that all massage therapists employed hold valid Wisconsin licenses.
4. Authorization for updated background checks on owners and operators.

5. Payment of a renewal fee($25.00) as set by the Common Council.

(c) Grounds for Denial of Renewal:
Renewal may be denied for:

1. Failure to comply with the requirements of this ordinance.
2. Outstanding fines, forfeitures, or unpaid taxes owed to the City.

3. Pending or prior disciplinary action against the massage establishment or its
employees.

4. A material misstatement or omission on the renewal application.

(d) Renewal Hearing:

If the City Clerk intends to deny renewal, the licensee shall be entitled to a hearing before
the Common Council or designated hearing officer, following the same notice and hearing
procedures described in Section 9(b).

§ 175-12. Severability

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this ordinance is held
unconstitutional or invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not
affect the validity of the remaining portions.

§ 175-13. Effective Date
This ordinance shall take effect upon passage and publication according to law.



Appendix A — Penalties and Enforcement Summary Table

Violation Type

Penalty

Operating without a Massage  $500 — $2,500
Establishment License per violation

Employing unlicensed massage $500 — $2,500

therapists

per violation

Violation of Conditions of

Operation (e.g.

$250 - 52,500

, hours, dress

per violation
code, records)
Refusal to allow lawful $500 - $2,500
inspection per violation
. . $1,000 -
Offering or allowing sexual
. . $2,500 per
activity on premises L
violation

$100 late fee +

Failure to renew license on time

renewal fee
Material misstatement on $250 - $2,500
application or renewal per violation

Enforcement Actions Summary

Action

License
Suspension

Emergency
Suspension

Trigger

3 ordinance violations within 12

Other Consequences

Immediate cease-and-desist order; possible
criminal charges under state law; License
suspension or revocation

Immediate cease-and-desist order; License
suspension or revocation; possible criminal
charges under state law

License suspension after 3 violations in 12
months

Immediate license suspension pending
hearing

Immediate emergency suspension; probable
license revocation; possible criminal charges
under state law

Potential suspension of operating authority

Denial or revocation of license

Process

Notice and hearing before Common

months; refusal to allow inspection;

threat to public health/safety

Immediate threat to public
health/safety

Council or hearing officer

Temporary suspension issued by Chief
of Police or City Clerk, effective
immediately, followed by a hearing



Action

License
Revocation

License
Renewal
Denial

Trigger Process

Repeated or serious violations, criminal Hearing with notice; revocation
convictions tied to premises decision by Common Council

Outstanding violations, unpaid fines, . .
Notice and hearing before Common

inaccurate renewal application, ) . ]
Council or hearing officer

disqualification under state law



City of Waterloo, Wisconsin

Massage Establishment License Application Form

City Clerk’s Office

1. Business Information

Legal Business Name:

Doing Business as:

Business Address:

Business Phone Number:

Business Email Address:

Business Entity Type: o Sole Proprietor o Partnership o Corporation o LLC

2. Applicant (Owner/Operator) Information

Full Legal Name:

Date of Birth:

Home Address:

Phone Number:

Email Address:

(If multiple owners/partners, attach additional sheets with full information.)

3. Premises Information

Property Owner Name (if leased):

Property Owner Contact Information:

Attach copy of lease agreement or proof of ownership.

Attach floor plan showing layout of business, including all rooms.



4. Massage Therapist Information

List all massage therapists employed or contracted (attach additional sheets if necessary):

Name Wisconsin License Number Expiration Date

5. Criminal History

Has any owner, operator, or managing employee been convicted of any crime involving
prostitution, human trafficking, controlled substances, or any offense involving moral turpitude?
o0 Yes 0 No

(If Yes, attach detailed explanation.)

6. Required Attachments
o 10 Copy of all owners' photo IDs
e 0 Proof of valid massage therapist licenses for all employees
e 0O Authorization for Background Check (attached form)
e 0 Application Fee $50.00. Renewal Fee $25.00.

o 0 Signed Certification (below)

7. Certification

I hereby certify that the information contained in this application is complete and true. |
understand that any false statement may result in denial, suspension, or revocation of any license
issued. I authorize the City of Waterloo to conduct background checks as required.

Applicant Signature: Date:




City of Waterloo, Wisconsin
Massage Establishment Inspection Checklist

Police Department

Business Name:
Address:
Date of Inspection:

Inspector Name:

Premises
e 0O Business license displayed prominently.
¢ 0O Massage therapist licenses displayed for all practitioners.
e 0O Floor plan matches submitted plan.
e 0O Premises clean, sanitary, and well-lit.
o 0O All treatment rooms properly labeled and accessible for inspection.
« 0 No beds, cots, mattresses, sleeping bags, or evidence of overnight living on premises.

e 0O All doors accessible to the public remain unlocked during business hours (unless
emergency).

e 0O No table showers, Vichy showers, or similar bathing equipment observed or in use.

e 0 No plumbing fixtures installed in massage rooms for client bathing purposes.

Personnel
o 0O Allindividuals providing massage are licensed in Wisconsin.
e 0O Professional attire worn by all massage therapists.

o 0O Employees aware of and complying with hours of operation.



Records
e 0 Client logbook maintained properly (client names/initials, date/time).
e 0O Logbook available for lawful inspection.

e 0O Retention of client records for one year.

Operations
o 0O No sexually explicit materials or advertisements visible.
o 0O No evidence of sexual activity or solicitation.
¢ 0 No alcohol, illegal drugs, or unlicensed sales on premises.

¢ 0O No sexually explicit advertisements, flyers, or marketing materials displayed or
distributed.

e 0 Refusal to inspect: o0 Yes o0 No

Final Notes/Violations:

Inspector’s Recommendation:
0 Approved O Re-inspection required o Violation Notice Issued

Inspector Signature: Date:




City of Waterloo, Wisconsin

NOTICE OF VIOLATION — MASSAGE ESTABLISHMENT

Date of Issue:

Time of Issue:

Business Name:

Business Address:

Owner/Manager (if known):

Phone Number:

Inspector/Officer Name:

Badge/Employee Number (if applicable):

Nature of Violation(s)

(Check all that apply)

O Operating without a valid Massage Establishment License

0 Employing unlicensed massage therapist(s)

O Refusal to allow lawful inspection

O Providing massage services outside of permitted business hours

O Failure to maintain required client records

o Sleeping or living on premises (beds, cots, mattresses, etc.)

0 Locked doors during regular business hours (non-emergency)

O Sexual activity or solicitation observed or reported
O Failure to display licenses properly
o Other (describe below)

Other / Description of Violation:



Required Corrective Action(s)

| o | Cease and desist specific activity immediately | | o | Submit corrected documentation
within ___ days | | o | Appear at hearing scheduled for: | | © | Business
ordered temporarily closed pending hearing | | o | Other corrective action (describe):

Penalty Information
e Potential Fine: $ per violation.
¢ License Action: May result in suspension, revocation, or non-renewal.

¢ State Reporting: Violation may be reported to the Wisconsin Department of Safety and
Professional Services (DSPS) if applicable.

Service of Notice

| o | Delivered in person to owner/manager | | o | Posted conspicuously on premises | | O |
Sent via certified mail to business address |

Recipient Name (printed):

Recipient Signature (if available):
Date:

Inspector/Officer Signature:
Date:

Important

Failure to correct the violations described herein may result in additional enforcement actions,
including increased fines, suspension or revocation of the Massage Establishment License, or
other legal remedies.



For questions, contact:

City Clerk’s Office

Phone: 920-478-3025

Email: cityhall@waterloowi.us



City of (City), Wisconsin

NOTICE OF HEARING — MASSAGE ESTABLISHMENT LICENSE

Date of Issue:

Time of Issue:

Business Name:

Business Address:

Owner/Manager (if known):

Phone Number:

Hearing Date:

Time of Hearing:

Hearing Location:Waterloo Council Chambers

Notice of Hearing for Violation(s)

You are hereby notified that a hearing will be held to address the following violation(s) related

to your Massage Establishment License:
0O Operating without a valid Massage Establishment License
o Employing unlicensed massage therapist(s)

O Refusal to allow lawful inspection

O Providing massage services outside of permitted business hours

O Failure to maintain required client records

o Sleeping or living on premises (beds, cots, mattresses, etc.)

0 Locked doors during regular business hours (non-emergency)

O Sexual activity or solicitation observed or reported
O Failure to display licenses properly

0 Other (describe below)



Violation(s) Reported by:

Hearing Details

At the hearing, you may present evidence, testimony, and witnesses. You may also be
represented by legal counsel. The purpose of the hearing is to determine if your license will be
suspended, revoked, or if any fines will be assessed as a result of the violations listed above.

Your Rights:
¢ You have the right to attend the hearing and speak on your behalf.
e You may present any documents, records, or other evidence.
¢ You may be represented by an attorney, at your expense.

o If you fail to attend the hearing, the hearing officer may make a decision based on
available evidence.

Failure to Attend:

If you do not attend the hearing, the hearing officer may decide to proceed in your absence,
and a ruling may be issued based on the information available. Failure to attend may result in
suspension, revocation, or other enforcement actions.

Corrective Action:

If the hearing determines that violations have occurred, corrective actions may include:
e Fines (as specified in the ordinance).
e Suspension or revocation of your Massage Establishment License.

e Reporting of violations to the Wisconsin Department of Safety and Professional Services
(DSPS) (if applicable).

e Other enforcement actions authorized by City ordinance.



Appeals Process:

If you disagree with the outcome of the hearing, you may appeal the decision to the [City Board
of Appeals or Common Council] within [time frame, e.g., 10 business days].

Contact Information:

If you have any questions or require additional information, please contact:
City Clerk’s Office

Phone: 920-478-3025

Email: cityhall@waterloowi.us

Acknowledgment of Notice

I, the undersigned, acknowledge receipt of this Notice of Hearing and understand that | am
required to attend or respond as directed above.

Recipient Name (printed):
Recipient Signature (if available):
Date:

City Clerk/Officer Signature:
Date:




Proposed 2025/2026 Snowmobile route in the City of Waterloo, Same
as the past several years. Properly signed, permissions granted. Two-
way traffic except HWY 19 bridge near Portland where both sides of the
ROW will be utilized.



136 North Monroe Street
Waterloo, Wl 53594
Phone: (920) 478-3025
Fax: (920) 478-2021
www.waterloowi.us

APPLICATION FOR SPECIAL EVENT or ENTERTAINMENT LICENSE

Any Special Event or Entertainment Event sponsor requesting municipal approvals, services, assistance, and/or other
support from the City of Waterloo for a special or entertainment event on public or private property must provide the
following information.

Submittal of application does not constitute approval. All applications must be reviewed.

NAME OF SPONSOR (Applicant): City of Waterloo Parks Department

STATUS: (circle one) unincorporated incorporated individual other Government

CONTACT NAME: Gabe Haberkorn

PHONE NUMBER: (920) 478-3025 /(920) 988-6297 /(920) 478-2021
DAYTIME EVENING FAX

EMAIL ADDRESS: parks@waterloowi.us

NAME OF EVENT: Waterloo Holiday Parade

TYPE OF EVENT: (circle one) Festival @arad® Caravan Rally March
Race Tag Day Other
PURPOSE OF EVENT: Waterloo Holiday Parade

DATE OF EVENT: December 13, 2025

EVENT HOURS: 5 pm SET UP HOURS4 pm -5pm  BREAKDOWNNA

DESCRIPTION OF EVENT: Waterloo Holiday Parade

SITE/ADDRESS FOR EVENT (list if multiple locations) Parade Route from HWY 19 (Van Holten's), 4 Corners,

North on Monroe Street, Right onto Dickenson, and then into Waterloo Firemen's Park

PROJECTED ATTENDANCE: 500 PAST ATTENDANCE: 500

NUMBER OF VOLUNTEERS/PERSONNEL FOR EVENT: 2

RAIN POLICY: None

DATE APPLICATION MADE October 8, 2025

Pursuant to Section 172-2 Waterloo Municipal Code
Application for Special Event or Entertainment License

Form created: 03/11/2004
Page 1 of 8
License Application


http://www.waterloowi.us/
PCParks
Oval
Parade 

Tag


HOLD HARMLESS CLAUSE:

The special event or entertainment sponsor hereby agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the City of Waterloo,
Wisconsin, its agents, public officials, officers, employees and authorized volunteers, from and against any and all
legal actions, claims, damages, losses, expenses arising out of the permitted event/activity or any activity associated
with the conduct of the sponsor’s operation of the event, including but not limited to, claims for personal or bodily
injury, disease or death, or injury to or destruction of property, excluding claims caused by the willful commission or
omission by employees of the City of Waterloo acting within the scope of their employment.

Further, the event sponsor agrees to indemnify the City of Waterloo and any of its agents, public officers, officials or
employees and authorized volunteers for any attorneys fees and court costs incurred or to be incurred in defending
any actions brought against them as a result of the sponsor’s use of public property or operation of the event as set
forth in the application for special permit.

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:

Proof of insurance is required of all Special or Entertainment Event Sponsors before the event. The attached list of
insurance requirements should be reviewed immediately with your Insurance Agent to comply. Please provide a
Certificate of Insurance with your completed application by, 20___ to the City Clerk’s Office 136 N. Monroe
Street, Waterloo, WI. 53594. Insurance coverage shall be from companies and in amounts acceptable to the City of
Waterloo. Failure to provide said acceptable insurance coverage in a timely manner is grounds for non-issuance or
revocation of the permit.

PERMITTED USE OF PUBLIC PROPERTY:

Whereas the Special or Entertainment Event Sponsor agrees to use the public property at
in Waterloo, Wisconsin, known as, for staging of, the City of Waterloo does hereby agree to permit for use, at no cost,
these premises for the date(s) of through 20 . _Sponsor does
hereby agree to conduct only that business/activity which is described in the Special Event Permit Application, and
agrees to all municipal requirements. Sponsor further agrees that within thirty (30) days of the conclusion of the event
it will, at its own expense, provide for the repair, replacement or maintenance of any damaged, lost or stolen portions
of the subject property including, but not limited to landscaping, street or buildings and/or pavement.

LIABILITY WAIVER:

The event sponsor agrees for itself and/or its employees, agents, or volunteers associated or to be associated with the
activity for which the permit is being sought, to waive and relinquish all claims that may result in any manner against
the City of Waterloo, its agents, public officers, officials or employees and authorized volunteers from said sponsored
event or activity, except for acts caused by the willful and wanton misconduct by employees of the City of Waterloo
acting within the scope of their employment.

AUTHORIZED SIGNATURES:

| hereby attest that | am authorized to bind the sponsor and/or its employees, agents, or volunteers associated or to be
associated with the activity for which the permit is being sought, to the terms of this agreement. | have read and
understand all regulations and requirements outlined herein. I/we do hereby agree to abide by all rules and regulations
outlined herein. l/we hereby agree to meet all requirements for documentation, certification, licensing, financial
responsibility and all other aspects of staging a Special Event in the City of Waterloo, as outlined herein. l/we
understand that our lack of meeting all requirements outlined herein may result in the denial or cancellation of the
proposed Special or Entertainment Event. Permit applied for and all terms and stipulations agreed to by:

Gabe Haberkorn @Q, —w———w

Name (please print) Signature
City of Waterloo Parks Coordinator 10/8/2025
Signatory Title (if applicable) Date

Pursuant to Section 172-2 Waterloo Municipal Code
Application for Special Event or Entertainment License

Form created: 03/11/2004
Page 2 of 8
License Application


PCParks
Stamp


THIS APPLICATION, WITH A DETAILED SITE PLAN ATTACHED, AND ANY OTHER APPLICABLE DOCUMENTS
AS OUTLINED HEREIN, MUST BE REMITTED TO THE CLERK'S OFFICE NO LATER THAN NINETY DAYS (90)
PRIOR TO THE OPENING DAY OF THE EVENT. Application received late or incomplete may be denied. Direct mail
to the City Clerk, City of Waterloo, 136 N. Monroe Street, Waterloo, WI. 53594. A copy of the application will then
be forwarded to the appropriate committees and or Departments for consideration of approval, denial, and scheduling.

Date application received: Received by:

Clerk’s Office to complete the section below:
Cc:

Police Department Council Approval

Date
Fire Department

Public Works Certificate of Insurance

Waterloo Utilities

Fee for Profit Events = $50.00 per event.

Fee is WAIVED for events held or sponsored by educational, charitable, nonprofit, or religious
organizations when the proceeds are devoted to the purposes of such organization.

Fee Paid: Date Paid:

Receipted by:

Pursuant to Section 172-2 Waterloo Municipal Code
Application for Special Event or Entertainment License

Form created: 03/11/2004, Revised: 03/22/2017
Page 3 of 8
License Application



Attachment 1

CITY OF WATERLOO INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR SPECIAL EVENTS

1. The City of Waterloo requires submission of a Certificate of Insurance along with the Special or Entertainment
Events Application prior to review by the City’s Government Operations Committee.

2. The Certificate of Insurance must include the following minimum limits of insurance coverage required for special
events on City property:

$300,000 Injury or death of one person; $1,000,000 for any one accident; $50,000 for Property Damage.

3. The City of Waterloo must be named on the Certificate of Insurance as primary, non-contributory additional
insured under the general liability policy for the event.

4. The Certificate of Insurance must include the name of the special event, and the date, time and location of the
event.

5. The City of Waterloo reserves the right to request a copy of the actual policy represented by the Certificate of
Insurance.

6. No event will be allowed to proceed without receipt by the City of a valid Certificate of Insurance in full
compliance with the above listed requirements.

Any questions regarding these insurance requirements should be directed to the City Clerk’s Office at (920) 478-3025

Pursuant to Section 172-2 Waterloo Municipal Code
Application for Special Event or Entertainment License

Form created: 03/11/2004
Page 4 of 8
License Application



SPECIAL EVENT or ENTERTAINMENT WORKSHEET

NAME OF EVENT: Waterloo Holiday Parade

DATE (S) OF EVENT: December 13, 2025 HOURS: 5 pm-6 pm

LOCAT|ON/P ROPERTY Parade Route from HWY 19 (Van Holten's), 4 Corners, North on Monroe, right onto Dickinsen and into Firemen's Park.

SAFETY PROCEDURES:
1) Will you be providing private on-site security?  YES NQ

If yes, list security company name.

Where will security be needed?

What times will security be needed?

Will WPD officers be required? YES NO

Municipal estimation of cost: WPD Personnel @ $ /hour = $

2) What are your plans for medical assistance? Waterloo Fire and EMS

Municipal estimation of cost: WFD equipment/personnel @ $ hours=§
3) Will there be fireworks at your event? YES NQ
Date of fireworks Time of Fireworks

Name/Address of company supplying fireworks

Fire Marshall must be contacted for approval and consultation.
SET UP/ CLEAN UP PROCEDURES:

1) Name of person in charge of set up: Gabe Haberkorn phone # (920) 941-8260

2) What time will set up begin: 4 pm

3) Name of clean up contact person: Gabe Haberkorn Cell Phone# (920) 941-8260

4) Estimated time for clean up after event: None

FEES AND PROCEEDS:

1) Will admission be charged for this event? YES NQ
If yes, how much: Adult Seniors Students
Children 5 & under Families

2) If a participant fee is charged, please indicate the amount: Booth:

Concessionaire:

Waterloo, WI
Page 5 of 8
Worksheet



3) Will alcoholic beverage(s) be sold? YES NG

If yes, what beverage and at what cost?

4) What does the Sponsor intend to do with any revenue over and above the expenditures?

(If this is a first year event, please provide a budget. If it is a repeat event, provide last year’s
financials.)

ENTERTAINMENT AND PROMOTIONS:

2) List names of performers and entertainment groups:

2) Describe other entertainment / activities planned for your event:

3) How will your event be promoted? Television Radio Newspapers Posters Flyers

other

PUBLIC PROPERTIES PROCEDURES:
If you are requesting city services, please complete the following area:
1) Will you need barricades? YES NG

Purpose of barricades:

Location of placement: Amount needed

Date barricades needed Time of placement

Name of company providing service if other than City

2) Will you require electrical service(s) YES NG

Entertainment: number of amps = lines @ $20 Cost$

Equipment being used:

Location Entertainer name

Entertainment: number of amps = lines@ $20 Cost $

Equipment being used:

Location: Entertainer name

Waterloo, WI
Page 6 of 8
Worksheet



Concessions: amps= lines @ $20 Cost $

Equipment being used:

Location:

Concessions: amps= lines @ $20 Cost $

Equipment being used:

Location:

Name of company providing service if other than City:

3) Will you need fencing installed? YES NG

Purpose of fencing:

Location: Amount:

Date needed Time needed

Estimated costs: locations @ $100. = $ Total costs
4) Will parking considerations be needed YES NO
Type(s)

Location: Amount

Date: Time:

5) Will picnic tables be needed? YES NO

Location Amount

Date needed: Time needed

Estimated cost(s) Picnic tables @ $5.00 per table = $

6) Is a street sweeper needed? YES NG

Location Date Time
Estimated cost(s) hours @ =$ total cost

Name of company providing service, if not City:

7) Will you need additional trash bins? YES NO
If yes how many requested? Cardboard trash bins Barrels
Where do you want them placed?

Name of disposal company if other than the City:

Where will dumpster be place:

Waterloo, Wi
Page 7 of 8
Worksheet



8) Will water connection be needed? YES NQ

Location Amount
Date Time
Estimated costs: connection(s) @ $20.00 = § Total water costs
Waterloo, Wi
Page 8 of 8

Worksheet



	Insert from: "Holiday Parade Application.pdf"
	CITY OF WATERLOO INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR SPECIAL EVENTS


	Textfield: 
	NAME OF SPONSOR Applicant: City of Waterloo Parks Department
	other: Government
	CONTACT NAME: Gabe Haberkorn
	Textfield-0: (920) 478-3025
	Textfield-1: (920) 988-6297
	Textfield-2: (920) 478-2021
	EMAIL ADDRESS: parks@waterloowi.us
	NAME OF EVENT: Waterloo Holiday Parade
	Other: 
	PURPOSE OF EVENT: Waterloo Holiday Parade
	DATE OF EVENT: December 13, 2025
	EVENT HOURS: 5 pm 
	SET UP HOURS: 4 pm - 5 pm
	BREAKDOWN: NA
	DESCRIPTION OF EVENT: Waterloo Holiday Parade
	SITEADDRESS FOR EVENT list if multiple locations: Parade Route from HWY 19 (Van Holten's), 4 Corners, 
	Textfield-3: North on Monroe Street, Right onto Dickenson, and then into Waterloo Firemen's Park
	PROJECTED ATTENDANCE: 500
	PAST ATTENDANCE: 500
	NUMBER OF VOLUNTEERSPERSONNEL FOR EVENT: 2
	RAIN POLICY: None
	DATE APPLICATION MADE: October 8, 2025
	Certificate of Insurance with your completed appli: 
	20: 
	Whereas the Special or Entertainment Event Sponsor: 
	these premises for the dates of: 
	through: 
	20-0: 
	Name please print: Gabe Haberkorn
	Signature: 
	Signatory Title if applicable: City of Waterloo Parks Coordinator
	Date: 10/8/2025
	Date application received: 
	Received by: 
	Textfield-4: 
	Textfield-5: 
	Council Approval: 
	Textfield-6: 
	Textfield-7: 
	Textfield-8: 
	Textfield-9: 
	Fee Paid: 
	Date Paid: 
	Receipted by: 
	NAME OF EVENT-0: Waterloo Holiday Parade
	DATE S OF EVENT: December 13, 2025
	HOURS: 5 pm-6 pm
	LOCATIONPROPERTY: Parade Route from HWY 19 (Van Holten's), 4 Corners, North on Monroe, right onto Dickinsen and into Firemen's Park.
	SAFETY PROCEDURES1 Will you be providing private o: SAFETY PROCEDURES1 Will you be providing private o_NO_On
	If yes list security company name: 
	Where will security be needed: 
	What times will security be needed: 
	RadioButton: _YES_On
	Municipal estimation of cost: 
	WPD Personnel: 
	hour: 
	2 What are your plans for medical assistance: Waterloo Fire and EMS
	Municipal estimation of cost-0: 
	WFD equipmentpersonnel: 
	hours: 
	RadioButton-0: _NO-0_On
	Date of fireworks: 
	Time of Fireworks: 
	NameAddress of company supplying fireworks: 
	1 Name of person in charge of set up: Gabe Haberkorn
	phone: (920) 941-8260
	2 What time will set up begin: 4 pm
	3 Name of clean up contact person: Gabe Haberkorn
	Cell Phone: (920) 941-8260
	4 Estimated time for clean up after event: None
	RadioButton-1: _NO-1_On
	If yes how much Adult: 
	Seniors: 
	Students: 
	Children 5  under: 
	Families: 
	2 If a participant fee is charged please indicate: 
	Concessionaire: 
	RadioButton-2: _NO-2_On
	If yes what beverage and at what cost: 
	4 What does the Sponsor intend to do with any reve: 
	Textfield-10: 
	Textfield-11: 
	Textfield-12: 
	other-0: 
	PUBLIC PROPERTIES PROCEDURESIf you are requesting: PUBLIC PROPERTIES PROCEDURESIf you are requesting_NO_On
	Purpose of barricades: 
	Location of placement: 
	Amount needed: 
	Date barricades needed: 
	Time of placement: 
	Name of company providing service if other than Ci: 
	RadioButton-3: _NO-3_On
	Entertainment number of amps: 
	Textfield-13: 
	lines  20 Cost: 
	Equipment being used: 
	Location: 
	Entertainer name: 
	Entertainment number of amps-0: 
	Textfield-14: 
	lines 20 Cost: 
	Equipment being used-0: 
	Location-0: 
	Entertainer name-0: 
	Concessions: 
	amps: 
	lines  20 Cost-0: 
	Equipment being used-1: 
	Location-1: 
	Concessions-0: 
	amps-0: 
	lines  20 Cost-1: 
	Equipment being used-2: 
	Location-2: 
	Name of company providing service if other than Ci-0: 
	RadioButton-4: _NO-4_On
	Purpose of fencing: 
	Location-3: 
	Amount: 
	Date needed: 
	Time needed: 
	Estimated costs: 
	Textfield-15: 
	RadioButton-5: Off
	Types: 
	Location-4: 
	Amount-0: 
	Date-0: 
	Time: 
	RadioButton-6: Off
	Location-5: 
	Amount-1: 
	Date needed-0: 
	Time needed-0: 
	Estimated costs-0: 
	Textfield-16: 
	Picnic tables  500 per table: Picnic tables  500 per table_NO_On
	Location-6: 
	Date-1: 
	Time-0: 
	Estimated costs-1: 
	hours-0: 
	Textfield-17: 
	Name of company providing service if not City: 
	If yes how many requested Cardboard trash bins: 
	Barrels: 
	Where do you want them placed: 
	Name of disposal company if other than the City: 
	Where will dumpster be place: 
	RadioButton-7: _NO-7_On
	Location-7: 
	Amount-2: 
	Date-2: 
	Time-1: 
	Estimated costs-2: 
	Textfield-18: 


